

PARISH OF ABINGTON – BARONY OF OWNEYBEG

Books I and II

PARISH OF ABINGTON – BARONY OF CLANWILLIAM

Book III

PARISH OF ABINGTON - BARONY OF CLANWILLIAM. BOOK III.

INDEX

Abington Parish	Page (1	Book 3
3.5 M who J. S. C. G. W. D. A. S.	(18	2
Abington Td. Church	1 41	1
Mill House	42 22	1 2
Ahacore Ahacrossaun	2 40	1
Ahantanny .	43	1
Annagh • Church Ashroe	40	4
House	4 42	1
Ballyguy Ballyvorheen	4 6	3
/ House Belvidere als. Garranbane	25 7	2 1
Belvidere/¢astle	44	1
Boarmanshill Boher	5 3	1 3
Boherglass	12 44	3 1
Bohergar Cappanahanagh	2 1 0	3
Cappanouk / Glebe	8 22	1
Cappercullen Castlecomfort	9 46	1
Charlottes Bridge Clare Bridge	45 45	1
Clashduff Cloghnadromin	13 6	3 3
Clonloughna Clonshavoy	15 14	1
House Clooncunna Nth.	13 5	
Sth Coolbreedeen	1 Ĭ 1 1	2 3 3 1
Coolnahila Palmer	12	1
Coolnahil & Powell	13	1

Index (contd.)

	Page	Book
Dooglasha Dromeliagh	47 16	1
Eyon •• House	3 8 1 7	1 2
Factory House Farnane House	47 17 24	1 1 2
Forkeala	1 8	1
Garranbane Gleno Knocklatteragh Newtown Glenstal Castle Gortavacoosh	7 20 23 32 21 44	1 1 1 1 1
Holly Well	48	1
Killeen Killinanure Kishyquirk	48 43	1 1 3
Knockanerry Knockaunnafunch Knockaunnamoughilly Knocklatteragh Knocknagorteeny Kylenanny	15 25 14 46 23 24	3 3 1 3 1 1 1 2
Leanbomanus Liscreagh Lisgory Lismullane Lissadoon	26 4 8 3	2 1 2 3 2
Maddyboy Meentola Mill Bank Moher Mongfune School Moroe Wood Village	9 31 23 28 27 16 29 30 2	3 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2

Index (contd.)

	Page	Book
Newtown	3 2	1
Pouleyon Puckane	17 33	2 1
Rath Wood Rosebrook	34 35 1	1 1 2
Sandylane Spa Well	10 15	3 2
The Lords Road Tineyfield Toberagaddy Toberagarriff Toberaguile Toberania Toberboroo Tobermoria Toorlougher Tuamanirvore	12 21 9 36 11 10 14 8 8 37 6	2 2 1 2 2 3 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Voughlage Cottes	14	<i>2</i> 2
Vauchluce Cottage	1 7	4

Abington Td.	B. S.	1
Mainistir Uaithne, thof Uaithne or Owney.	ne monastery of the territ	ory
Abington	J. O'D Sur. & Val. Report 1 Presentment Book 182 Tithe Composition Bo Rev. Thos. P. Le Fan Inhabitants Barony Map	6 ok 1826
Abingdon) Abington)	Ferrar: Hist. of Lim	erick
Abbey Outhneybeg Abby-Outhny Abjeowhnie) Abjeowhnie)	Down Survey Acts of Settlemt &c. Civil Survey 1654-16	
	nd of the parish of Abingt y Knockanerry Td:; W. by t	

Abington (contd.)

Ph. of Abington in the County of the City of Limerick; N. by Ahacore Td.; and S. by Dromeliagh Td.

This td. contains 380 acres which are arable with limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and some wheat. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let to Bolton Massy, Esq., and he again at will to 42 tenants in farms of 30 to 2½ acres at £2 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry. The prevailing Names are Ryans.

Ahahore

-- B. S.

2

Ath a' Choir, the ford of the crane. J. O'D.

Ahacore

-- J. O'D.

Ahahore

-- Barony Map
-- Inhabitants

Situated in the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Farnane Td.; W. by the Ph. of Clonkeen; N. by Toberagarriff Td.; and S. by Abington Td.

This td. contains 165 acres, which are arable % without limestone. Soil partly deep % wet, producing potatoes, corn & flax. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let by a lease of one life to Mrs. Costelloe, and she again at will to 4 tenants at £2 4s. per acre. County Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre, half yearly, and Tithe 1s. per acre. Bog scarce and bought by the tenantry for fuel.

Annagh

-- B. S.

3

Eanach, a marsh or morass. J. O'D.

Annagh

-- J. O'D.

-- Ho. of Commons Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Presentments Book 1834

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1826

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu, Incumbt.

-- Barony Map

-- Ferrar: History of Limerick

-- Down Survey

Annagh)
Anugh)

Anagh

-- Civil Survey 1654-1656

Situated in the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by the Td. of Pollagh in the Ph. of Kilvolane; W. by Coolnahila Powell Td.; E. by Coolbreedeen Td.; and S. by the Td. of Coolnahila Powell.

This td. contains 860 acres of which about 15 are bog, the rest arable with limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat. The proprietor

Annagh (contd.)

Matt. Barrington, Esq., has it let to 30 tenants, 17 of whom have leases of one life and 31 years, at £1 10 to £1 7s. per acre, in farms from 30 to 3 acres. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s. per do. Bog used for fuel is bought by the peasantry and is very scarce. The Prevailing Names are Doolys and Ryans.

Ashroe

-- B. S.

4

Ais Ruadh, the red hill. J. O'D.

Ashroe

- J. O'D

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Presentments Book 1834

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1826

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu.

-- Inhabitants
-- Barony Map

Ashrow

Situated in the N. end of the parish and bounded on the E. by Boarmanshill Td.; W. and N. by Kilvolane Ph.; and S. by Cappahanagh Td.

This td. contains 801 acres which are arable & without limestone. Soil light and partly gravelly, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and some wheat. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let by a lease renewable for ever to Thos. P. Evans, Esq., who has part of it in his own occupation and the rest let at will to 27 tenants at £1 7s. to 15s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s. 2d. to 1s. 8d. per acre half yearly, and Tithe 1s. 4d. per do. Bog used for fuel is in abundance. Prevailing Names are Ryans.

Boarmanshill

-- B. S.

5

Cnoc Bhormain, hill of Borman. Obicusly called after a family. J. O'D.

Boarmanshill

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Barony Map

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the N. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Puckane Td.; W. by Cappanahanagh; N. by Ashroe; and S. by Cappercullen Td.

Contains 569 acres, of which about \$\frac{3}{4}\$ are mountain and rough pasture, the rest arable and without limestone. Soil very light and rocky, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let at will per his agent J. F. Evans Esq. to 11 tenants at the gross rent of £48 10s. tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. per acre half yearly. Bog for fuel in abundance. Prevailing Names: Bourkes.

Ballyvorheen

-- B. S.

6

Béal a' Bóithrín, mouth of the little road; or Baile a' Bóithrín, town of the little road. J. O'D.

Ballyvorheen

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland Report

-- Presentments Book -- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu, Incumbt.

Bealavorheen Ballavorhine Ballyvorreen Bealaborhine

-- Barony Map -- Down Survey

-- Acts of Settlemt. &c. -- Civil Survey 1654-1656

Situated in the E. and S. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by the Ph. of Tuogh; W. by the tds. of Moher & Mongfune; N. by Moher; and S. by Cappanouk.

Contains 832 acres of which about $\frac{1}{4}$ is bog and rough ground; the rest arable without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Thomas Lloyd, Esq., Beechmount, has it let per his agent Edwd. Maunsell, Esq., to 9 tenants by a tenure of 3 lives or 31 years in farms of 40 to 30 acres at £2 to £1 4s. per acre, tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance. Prevailing Names: Ryans.

Belvidere, als Garraunbawn - B. S.

Gearrán Bán, the white horse, a name generally applied to remarkable rocks or stones. J. O'D.

Garranbane

-- J. O'D.

-- Acts of Settlemt. &c.

Garrabane

-- Down Survey

-- Civil Survey 1654-1656 Guranebane Belvidere -- Sur. & Val. Ireland

-- Tithe Compn Book

-- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Inhabitants

-- Presentments Book

In the centre of the parish, and bounded on the N. by Puckane Td.; E. by Glenstal Td.; S. by Liscreagh or Wilton Td.; and W. by Cappercullen and Boarmanshill Tds.

Contains 927 acres, of which about $\frac{1}{2}$ is mountain and rocky pasture, including woods, and the rest arable. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Matt. Barrington, Esq., has part of it in his own occupation, and the remainder let to tenants, 8 of whom have leases of one life, at £1 1s. per acre, tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Bog used for fuel is in abundance. Prevailing Names: Ryans.

Ceapa an Abhaic, the tilled plot of the dwarf. Ceapa (ceapach) always means a piece of land laid out for tillage. J. O'D.

Cappanouk

-- J. O'D.

Cappanoke

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824 -- Tithe Compn. Book, 1826

-- Rev. T. L. Le Fanu

-- Presentments Book 1834

Cappanuke Cappanouke Capanewke Cappenewke

Keapanewke

-- Inhabitants -- Down Survey

-- Acts of Settlemt. &c. -- Civil Survey 1654-1656

In the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Dromsallagh Td.; S. by Tuogh Ph.; W. by Rath Td.; and N. by Mongfune and Gortavacoosh.

Contains 951 acres of which about 12 are bog, and the rest arable with some limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn, flax and wheat. The proprietor Matt. Barrington, Esq. has it let per his agent Henry Maunsell, Esq. to 23 tenants (besides 5 poor householders) by leases of one life in farms of 50 to 10 and to $1\frac{1}{2}$ acres at £2 10s. to £1 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog for fuel is in abundance. Frevailing Names: Ryans.

Cappercullen

-- B. S.

Ceapa Uí Chuillin, C: Cuillin's plot. J. O'D.

Cappercullen

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report -- Presentments Book

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Barony Map -- Inhabitants

Capacullyn Cappercullin Keapacuillin

-- Down Survey

-- Acts of Settlemt. &c. 1666-84

-- Civil Survey, 1654-1656

In the N. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by the Td. of Belvidere; W. by Cappercullen Td.; N. by Ashroe Td.: and S. by Moroe Td.

Contains 358 acres which are arable without limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes and Corn. The proprietor Lord Carberry has the chief part of it in his own occupation, and the remainder let at will per his agent Jas. F. Evans, Esq. to 4 tenants at 15s. to 10s. per acre, tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half-yearly. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Ceapa na n-Athanach, plot of the firebrands. J. O'D.

Cappanahanagh

-- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

Cappanahinagh

-- Tithe Compn. Book -- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

Cappernaghon Cappernahony -- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

Capenaheny

-- Barony Map -- Down Survey

Keapanahiny

-- Civil Survey 1654-1656

In the W. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by the Tds. of Boarmanshill & Cappercullen; W. by Clonloughna Td.; N. by Ashore Td.; and S. by Moroe Wood Td.

Contains 648 acres, of which about a is bog, the rest arable without limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let at will per his agent Jas. F. Evans to 25 tenants at £1 4s. to £1 10s. per acre, tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Bog used for fuel is in abundance. Prevailing Names: Ryans.

Coolbreedeen

-- B. S.

11

Chil Brighdin, the corner or angle of Brighdin, or Brigidianus, nom. viri et nom. dim. mulieris.

Coolbreedeen

-- J. O'D

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

Coolbredeen

-- Tithe Composition Book 1826

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Presentments Book 1834 Coolbreen

In the west end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Clonloughna Td.; West by Coolnahila Powell Td.; North by Annagh Td.; and S. by Knocknagorteeny Td.

Contains 259 acres, of which about 10 are bog and the rest arable with some limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let to Jno. Benn, Esq., and Capt. Kane by leases renewable for ever, and they again to 12 tenants, two of whom with leases of 2 lives or 21 years at £2 6s. to £3 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.5d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and tithe is. per do, Bog for fuel is planty.

Coolnahilla Palmer

-- B. S.

12

Cúl na h-Aidhle (h-Aille), back of the precipice. J. O'D.

Coolnahila Coolenahila Coolenahily

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

Coolnahilla Palmer (contd.)

In the W. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Knocknagorteeny Td.; W. by Killinagarriff Ph.; N. by Coolnahila Powell Td.; and S. by the Td. of Clonshavoy.

Contains 271 acres, of which about 10 are bog, the rest arable. Soil partly deep with limestone, producing potatoes, corn, and flax. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let to Geo. W. Taylor, Esq., at 4s. 6d. per acre, and he again per his agent Mr. M. G. Goggin to 4 tenants by leases expiring in 1844 at £1 15s to £1 10s. per acre, tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly. Bog for fuel is in abundance.

Coolnahilla Powell

-- B. S.

13

Coolnahila Powell

-- J. O'D.

In the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the W. by Kilinagarriff Ph.; E. by Coolbreedeen Td.; N. by Annagh Td.; and S. by the Td. of Coolnahila Palmer.

Contains 200 acres which are arable with some limestone. Soil partly deep producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let to Caliph Powel Esq. by a lease renewable for ever at 4s. 6d. per acre, and he again to 7 tenants by leases expiring in 1841 at £2 2s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s. per do. Bog used for fuel is very scarce, and is bought by the tenentry. Prevailing Names: Ryans.

Clonshanvoise

-- B. S.

14

Clonshavoy Clounshannavoyle

Lilliput

-- Inhabitants -- Barony Map Lilliput

In the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Toberagarriff Td.; W. and S. by Clonkeen Ph.; and B by Coolnahila Palmer Td.

Contains 24 acres which are arable. Soil partly deep producing potatoes, corn, and flax. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let to Caliph Fowel Esq. (in whose own occupation it is) by a lease renewable for ever at 4s.6d. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/5 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s. per do.

Clonloughna

-- B. S.

15

Cluain Lochna, Loughney's clon, lawn, or bog island.

Clonloughna

-- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

Clonlaghna

-- Tithe Compn Book 1826

-- see letter of Proprietor

-- Civil Survey 1654-1656

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

Clonloughna (contd.)

-- B. S.

15

Clounloghna Clonloghan

-- Barony Map - -- Down Survey

Clonloghany Cluonloghlen -- Acts of Settlemt. &c. -- Civil Survey 1654-1656

In the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. and N. by Cappanahanagh Td.; W. by Coolbreedeen Td.; and S. by Knocknagorteenv Td.

Contains 120 acres, of which about 1 is bog, the rest arable without limestone. Soil deep and wet producing potatoes and some corn. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let to Mr. John Going (who has it in his own occupation) by a lease renewable for ever at the gross rent of £12.
Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly for 27 acres, and tithe 9d. per acre. Bog for fuel is in abundance.

Dromeleigh

-- B. S.

16

Druim Eileach, ridge of the Elians. Origin of the name is not known. J. O'D.

Dromeliagh Dromeleigh

-- J. O'D. -- Inhabitants -- Barony Map

Droumealy Dromoyle?

-- Down Survey

Drumlagh

-- Acts of Settlemt &c. 1666-1684

In the S. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Rath Td.; S. by Caherconlish Ph.; W. by same; and N. by Td. of Abington.

Contains 671 acres which are arable. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax, with some wheat. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let at will to 12 tenants in farms of 38 to 5 acres at £2 to £1 5s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/5 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and tithe 1/2 per do. Bog used for fuel is bought by the tenants; it is very scarce. The prevailing names are Ryans.

Farnane

-- B. S.

17

Fearnan, a place abounding in alder trees. J. O'D.

Farnane

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Presentments Book -- Tithe Compn. Book

Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

Farhnane Farrane

-- Acts of Settlemt. &c.

Farnane (contd.)

Situated in the W. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Knockanerry Td.; W. by Tobernagarriff Td.; N. by Moroe Wood Td.; and S. by Abington Td.

This Td. contains 431 acres, of which about 5 are bog, the rest arable. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let to Mrs. Costelloe by a lease of one life, and she again at will to 43 tenants at £2 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly. Bog for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry. Tithe is 1s. 3d. per acre. Prevailing Names: Ryans.

Forkeila

-- B. S.

18

Meaning unknown. J. O'D.

Forkeila

-- Inhabitants

-- Tithe Composition Book

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

In the E. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by the Ph. of Doon: W. by the Tds. of Gleno and Newtown: N. by the Ph. of Kilvolane, and S. by Doon Parish.

Contains 1090 acres, of which about nine-tenths are mountain, and the rest arable without limestone, producing potatoes and some corn. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let to R. Scully, Esq. by a lease of 3 lives at the gross rent of £100. Neither Co. Cess nor Tithe paid.

Gortavaccose

-- B. S.

19

Gort a' Bhacúis, field of the oven. In this part of Ireland 'Gort' means a cultivated field of any kind, but particularly a corn field. J. O'D.

Gortavacoosh

-- J. O'D

Gortavacoose

-- Inhabitants

Gortavacouche

-- Tithe Compn. Book -- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

Gortavakoosh -- Barony Map

In the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Mongfune Td.; W. by Knockenerry Td.; N. by Liscreagh or Wiltown Id.; and S. by Cappanouk Id.

Contains 126 acres which are arable. Soil partly deep and without limestone, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and some wheat. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let to Mrs. D. O'Brien and Counsellor H. O'Callaghan by a lease of one life, and they again to 10 tenants in farms of 20 to 4 acres by leases of one life at £1 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and tithe 1/2 per acre. Bog bought by the tenantry is scarce.

Glano

-- B. S.

20

Gleann Eó, the valley of the yew.

Gleno - J. O'D

Glano --- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Inhabitants

Glannoir -- Barony Map
Glaynoe -- Acts of Settlemt. &c.

In the E. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Forkeila Td.; W, by Toorlougher Td.; N. by Kilvolane Ph.; and S. by Tuogh Ph.

Contains 760 acres, of which about five-sixths are mountain, and the rest erable without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes and corn. The proprietor Matt. Barrington, Esq. has it let to Wm. Royse, Esq. by a lease renewable for ever at the gross rent of £25, and he again to 3 tenants by leases of 3 lives and 31 years at £30. Co. Cess generally 1/2 to 1/8 per acre half-yearly for the arable, and tithe 9d. per acre.

Glanstale

-- B. S.

21

Gleann Stail, the valley of the stall. J. O'D.

Glenstal -- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn Book.
-- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

Glenstale -- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Presentments Book 1834

-- Inhabitants

Glanstahill -- Barony Map

Glanstall -- Acts of Settlemt. &c.

Glanstaile -- Civil Survey 1654-1656

In the E. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Moher Td.; W. by Belvidere or Garranbane Td.; N. by Meentola Td.; and S. by Mongfune Td.

Contains 1884 acres, of which about 3 are mountain and woods, the rest arable, without limestone. Soil very light and rocky, producing potatoes and some corn. The proprietor Matt. Barrington, Esq., who has part of it in his own occupation, has the rest let by a lease of one life at £1 per acre to 6 tenants, one of whom Mr. Mathew D'Courcy has his part let again at will to 7 others at £1 7s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s. per do. Bog for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry.

Glebe (Fart of Cappanouk) -- B. S.

22

See Td.

-- J. O'D.

In the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. and N. by Cappanouk Td.; W. by Knockanerry Td.; and S. by Rath Td.

Glebe (contd.)

This Glebe contains 32 acres, which are arable. Soil deep, producing potatoes and corn. The proprietor is the Revd. Thos. Phil. Le Fanu, Incumbt. The Glebe House, situated in the centre of the Glebe, is 4 story high, and was built in 1804 at the expense of £1,647

Knocklatera

-- B. S.

23

Cnoc Leatarach, hill of the watery slopes. J. O'D.

Knocklatteragh

-- J. O'D.

Gleno Knocklatteragh

-- see letter.

Knocklatera

-- Tithe Compn. Book -- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

Knocklateragh

-- Inhabitants

Gleno Knocklatera

-- Sketch Map

In the N.E. end of the parish and bounded on the E. by Newtown Td.; W. by Gleno Td.; N. by Kilvolane Ph.; and S. by Gleno Td.

Contains 144 acres, of which about 1 are mountain and pasture, the rest arable without limestone. Soil partly deep and muddy, producing potatoes and corn. The proprietor Matt: Barrington Esq. has it let by a lease renewable for ever to W. Royse, Esq., and he again to 3 tenants by leases of 3 lives and 31 years at the gross rent of £16 10s., tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly for $9\frac{1}{2}$ acres.

Knocknagurteeny

-- B. S.

24

Cnoc na nGoirtinidhe, hill of the small fields. O'D.

Knocknagorteeny

-- J. O'D.

Knocknagurteeny

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Presentments Book.

-- Inhabitants

Knocknagurteena

Knocknagurteeny

Cnocknegurteeny

-- Tithe Compn. Book.

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Barony Map

Knocknegurtina -- Down Survey Knocknegurta

-- Acts of Settlemt. &c. -- Civil Survey 1654-1656.

In the W. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Moroe wood Td.; W. by Coolnahila Palmer Td.; N. by Coolbreedeen Td.; and S. by Toberagarriff Td.

Contains 439 acres, which are arable without limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and some wheat. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let at will to 25 tenants in farms of 60 to $1\frac{1}{2}$ acres at £1 to £1 13s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly

Knockanerry (contd.)

and Tithe 1/4 per acre. Bog for fuel is very scarce and is bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names: Quins and Ryans.

Liscreagh or Wilton

-- B. S.

26

Lios Criche, fort of the mere, border, or limit. J. O'D.

Liscreagh

-- 0°D.

See letter.

In the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by. Mongfune Td.; W. by Unockanerry Td.; N. by Cappercullen Td.; and S. by the Td. of Gortavacoosh.

Contains 146 acres, of which about 8 are bog, the rest arable without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let by a lease of one life and 21 years to Mr. Geo. Duhy, who has part of it in his own occupation, and the remainder let to two tenants for the above term at £13 16s. gross. Co. Cess not paid in this townland. Tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Munfung

-- B. S.

27

Moing Fienn, the white bog or quagmire. J. O'D.

Mongfune

-- J. O'D.

Mogfune

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

Nungfuine

-- Tithe Compn. Book -- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

Mogfune Munfung -- Presentments Book -- Inhabitants

Moneen Mungfound

-- Barony Map -- Down Survey

Moungfoune Mongfoune

.-- Acts of Settlemt. &c. -- Civil Survey 1654-1656

In the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by the Td. of Ballyvorheen: W. by Gortavacoosh Td.; N. by Glenstal Td.; and S. by Cappalouk Td.

Contains 590 acres, of which about 20 are bog, the rest arable and with some limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and wheat. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let by leases of one life at £1 per acre and in farms of 100 to 10 acres to 5 tenants, under whom are 15 more at will at 21 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance. The prevailing names are Duhys and Boyles.

Mohir

-- B. S.

28

Mother, a ruin of any building. J. O'D. -- Barony Map Moher

Mohir (contd.)

Mohir

Moehgorr

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Inhabitants

-- Civil Survey 1654-1656

-- J. O'D. Moher

In the E. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. and S. by Ballyvorheen Td.; W. by Glenstal Td.; and N. by same.

Contains 481 acres, of which about eleven-twelfths are mountain and rough pasture, the rest arable. Soil deep and muddy without limestone, producing potatoes & some corn. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let by a lease of one life at the gross rent of £30 to Mr. Stephen Roche, and he again for same term to 4 tenants at £35. Tithe 6d. per acre and Co. Cess none paid in this td.

Murroe

-- B. S.

29

Mogh Ruadh, the red plain. J. O'D. -- J. O'D. -- J. O'D.

recté Moyroe

-- Tithe Compn Book. Murroe

-- Inhabitants -- Darony Map

Murrue Mooroe -- Down Survey

-- Civil Survey 1654-1656 Moeroe

In the W. end of the parish, and is bounded on the E. by Ballyvorheen; S. by do.; and W. by Earnane Td.

Contains 135 acres which are arable and without limestone. Soil partly light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let at will per his agent Jas. F. Evans Esq. to 12 tenants at £1 10s. to £1 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/2 to 1/8 per acre half yearly for every third acre, and tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel and bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names: Ryans.

Murroe Wood

-- B. S.

30

Moroe Wood Woodland

-- J. O'D. -- Barony Map

In the W. end of the parish, and bounded on the W. by Knocknagorteeny Td.; E. by Moroe Td.; N. by Cappanahanagh Td.; and S. by Earnane Td.

Contains 241 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let at will in farms of 28 to 3 acres to 30 tenants at £1 1s. to 16s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/5 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s. per do, Bog used for fuel is in abundance. Prevailing Names: Ryans. __ B. S. # 66928

Meintello

Min Tolla, smooth hill. J. O'D.

Meentolla

-- J. O'D.

Meentello

-- Tithe Compn Book -- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Inhabitants
-- Barony Map

Meengnatuilla

In the N. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Toorlougher Td.; N. by Belvidere otherwise Garranbane Td.; S. by Glenstal Td.; and N. by the Ph. of Kilvolane.

Contains 494 acres, of which about half are bog and rough pasture, the rest arable without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes and corn. The proprietor Matt. Barrington Esq. has it let by a lease of lives renewable for ever to Mrs. Ingram and Mr. Timothy C'Brien, both of whom have it let again to 4 tenants (besides six poorer sort) by leases of 3 lives at the gross rent of £105. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly for 28 acres. Tithe in gross £3 16s. Bog for fuel is in abundance.

Newtown

-- B. S.

32

31

Gleno Newtown

-- J. O'D.

Newtown

-- Sketch Map
-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Inhabitants

-- Acts of Settlemt. &c.

In the E. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Forkeila Td.; W. and S. by Gleno Td.; and N. by Eilvolane Ph.

Contains 194 acres, of which about half are mountain and rough pasture, the rest arable without limestone. Soil deep and muddy, producing potatoes and corn. The proprietor Matt. Barrington Esq. has it let by a lease renewable for ever to Mr. Wm. Royse, and he again to two tenants by leases of 3 lives and 31 years at the gross rent of £20. Co. Cess generally 1/2 to 1/8 per acre half yearly for 9½ acres. Tithe 9d. per do.

Puckane

-- B. S.

33

Pocán, a buck goat. J. O'D. This is the local interpretation. It is supposed to have been called first Baile na bPocán, i.e., Buckstown, and it will be apt to be yet called Goatstown or Buxton.

Tuckane

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Puckane (contd.)

In the N. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. and S. by the Td. of Belvidere otherwise Garranbane; W. by Boarmanshill Td.; and N. by the Ph. of Kilvolane.

Contains 228 acres, of which about 3 is mountain and tough pasture, the rest arable without limestone, producing potatoes and some corn. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let at will per his agent J. F. Evans Esq. to 5 tenants at the gross rent of £56. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly for 40 acres; tithe included in the rent. Bog for fuel is in abundance.

Rath

-- B.S.

34

Ráth, the fort; always applied to an earthen fort. J. 0'D.

Rath

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Tithe Compn. Book -- Revd. T. F. Le Fanu

Inhabitants

Rath & Rathwood

Raghe

Presentments Book Down Survey.

In the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Cappanouk Td.; W. by Dromeliagh Td.; N. by Enockanerry Td.; and S. by Rathwood.

Contains 37" acres, which are arable with some limestone. Soil partly light producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Carbery has it let at will to 38 tenants in farms of 20 to $1\frac{1}{2}$ acres at £2 2s. to £1 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s. per do. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry. Prevailing Names: Briens.

Rathwood

-- B. S.

35

Coill na Rátha, wood of the rath or earthen fort. J. O'D.

Rathwood

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Inhabitants

Rath and Rathwood

-- Presentments Book

Situated in the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by Cappanouk Td.; W. by Dromeliagh Td.; and N. & S. by the Ph. of Abington in the County of the City of Limerick.

Contains 280 acres, which are arable and without limestone. Soil deep and wet, producing potatoes, corn, and flax. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let at will per his agent to 24 tenants at £1 per acre in farms of 16 to 2½ acres. County

Rathwood (contd.)

Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and Tithe 11d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance. Prevailing Names: Briens.

Tubberagarive

-- B. S.

36

Tober a' Ghairbh, well of the bough men. J. O'D.

Toberagarriff Tubberagiriy -- J. O'D.

Tubberagiriv - Tithe Com

- Tithe Compn. Book - Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

Tubbergarriff

-- Sur. & Val. Report
-- Presentments Book 1834

Tubbernagerruff Tubbergeriffe Tobergarriffe -- Barony Map
-- Down Survey

-- Acts of Settlemt. &c.

In the W. end of the parish and bounded on the E. by Farnane Td.; W. by Clonshavoy Td.; B. by Enocknagorteeny Td.; and S. by Clonkeen Parish.

Contains 265 acres which are arable with limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax, and some wheat. The proprietor bord Cloncurry has it let per his agent Counsellor Wm. Lewis to 16 tenants in farms of 20 to 3 acres at £1 14s. to £1 5s. per acre, tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly. Bog used for fuel is very scarce and bought by the tenantry.

Tourlogher

-- B. S.

37

Tuar Luachar, the rushy field or bleach green. J. O'D.

Toorlougher Tourlogher

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. T. F. Le Fanu -- Tithe Compn. Book

--Inhabitants

Tourlogher

-- Acts of Settlemt. &c.

In the N. end of the parish, and bounded on the M. by Kilvolane Ph.; E. by Gleno Td.; S. by Glenstal Td.; and W. by the Td. of Meentola.

Contains 492 acres, of which about $\frac{3}{4}$ are mountain and rough pasture, the rest arable. Soil light, producing potatoes and some corn. The proprietor Matt. Barrington Esq. has part of it in his own occupation and the remainder let to 1 tenant by a lease of 3 lives at 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/4 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and Tithe included in the rent.

Eyon

-- B. S.

38

Adhan, a hollow like a cauldron. J. O'D.

Eyon

-- J.O'D.

Eyon (contd).

Eyone Eyone

Eyen

-- Inhabitants

-- Revd. T. F. Le Fanu -- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Presentments Book
-- Barony Map

Oine Eyone

-- Act of Settlement &c.

In the S. end of the parish, and bounded on the E. by the Ph. of Tuogh; on the W. by Caherconlish Ph.; on the N. by Rathwood Td.; and on the South by Tuogh Parish.

Contains 542 acres, of which about 15m are bog and the rest arable with some limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Edwd. Hartopp, Esq. has it let at will per his agent David Roche, Esq. to 34 tenants in farms of 24 to 1½ acres at £1 8s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1/2 to 1/8 per acre half yearly, and Tithe 1/2 per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance. The prevailing names are Byrnes.

Aha an Chrusaun

-- Inhabitants

40

Ath a' Chrosain, ford of the Cross.

Mhacrossaun

-- J. O'D.

On the N.W. boundary of Ashroe Td. on the road through the same td.

A bridge built in 1800. It has three arches.

Annagh Church

-- Inhabitants

Situated near the centre of the N. part of Annagh Td. and also N. of the road through same.

Is a small ruin, about 60 feet by 20 feet, and its walls are about 10 feet high. It has a burish place attached to it.

Abington Church

-- Inhabitants

41

See parish name. J. O'D.

Situated near the middle of the N.W. boundary of the td. of /bington.

The date of the erection of this church is earlier than can be pointed out by the inhabitants. It is a small building without a tower, capable of containing about 100 persons, and attached to it is a spacious graveyard. At the S.W. corner of the graveyard stands the ruin of a Convent, about 20 feet high, and in length and breadth 60 by 20 feet. In this Convent is an altar of neat stone-work with 2 pillars of the same material about 6 inches in diameter each side. On the right of the altar is the effigy of St. Bernard cut in stown; on the left is that of St. Peter. Opposite the altar is a large stone

about 6 feet high, engraved with Latin words partly defaced by what the inhabitants term the "Jocelyn Troops", who were stationed here in the latter end of the 17th century. Other images, amongst them that of the Virgin Mary, are thrown under the altar.

Ashroe House *

-- Inhabitants

42

Ashroe Ashrow -- J. O'D -- Barony Map

Situated near the centre of Ashroe Td. and about 20 chains W. of the road from Moroe to Newport.

It is the seat of Thomas P. Evans, Esq., and was built in 1770 at the expense of about £850. It is 3 story high.

Abington Mill

-- Inhabitants

Situated at the middle of the N. boundary of the td. of Dromeliagh.

This mill is 3 story high, and is used for manufacturing flax. It has also a Tuck Mill attached to it.

Ahaun Thannee

-- Inhabitants

43

Áthán Tanaidhe, the thin or shallow ford. J. O'D.

The Shallow Ford (Eng.) -- The Inhabitants.

Situated at the centre of the W. by. of Cappercullen and the N.E. extremity of Moroe Tds, on the road from Moroe Village to Newport.

The name was originally that of the ford before the erection of the bridge that now spans it, and the place still retains the old name.

Kellinanure

-- Inhabitants

Cillin an Iubhair, the little church of the yew.

Eillinanure

-- J. O'D.

Situated near the centre of Mongfune Td, and S. of the road from Cappamore to Moroe.

A graveyard, about 4 chains long and 2 broad, enclosed by a wall about 5 feet high.

Boherglas

-- Inhabitants

44

Bóthar Glas, green road. J. O'D.

Green Road (Eng.) -- Inhabitants.

-- J. O'D.

Boherglas -- J.

Situated near the N.W. corner of Cappanouk and the middle of the E. boundary of Rath Tds.

On the main road from Limerick to Cappamore, from which leads another road to Moroe, the union of which roads is named as above.

Belvidere Castle

-- Inhabitants

44

Glenstal

-- See letter

Situated in the middle of the south end of Belvidere Td.

This castle was commenced in 1837 by the proprietor Matt. Barrington, Esq., upon which he had expended in 1840 about £5,000. The only one of the towers yet built is 70 feet high, circular, and about 40 feet in diameter. The second, which is intended, will be 150 feet high. The two towers will be 200 feet asunder, with the Court between them.

Clare Bridge

-- Inhabitants

45

Droichead a' Chláir, bridge of the board. J. O'D.

Clare Bridge

-- J. C'D.

On the centre of the N. by. of Ashroe Td. and on the road from Moroe to Newport.

This bridge was built before 1790. It has one arch.

Charlottes Bridge

-- Inhabitants

-- J. O'D.

Situated In the N.E. corner of Puckane Td. and on the road between Cappamore and Newport.

This bridge was built in 1834 by Matt. Barrington Esq. It is two chains long and 15 feet high with three arches.

Cruckaun na Mbouchilly

-- Inhabitants

46

Cnocán na mBuachaillidhe, hillock of the boys. J. O'D.

Knockaunnamoughilly -- J. O'D.

In the N.E. corner of Puckane Td. about 9 chains S. of Charlottes Bridge, and two chains west of the road leading through same townland.

This hill, which is of a globular shape, is about 6 chains in diameter, and almost of a heathy appearance. It has a small earthen fort on its summit, in size about 1 chain. It is also circular, has a green appearance, and is about a foot higher than the surface of the hill.

Castle Comfort

-- Inhabitants

Caisleán na bPaerach, castle of the Powers.

Castlecomfort

-- J. O'D.

-- Barony Map

Situated in the S.E. corner of Farnane Td.

The seat of the Revd. T. O'Brien Costelloe, P.P. It was built in 1824 at a cost of about £800. It is 2 story high, is placed on an eminence, and takes its name from a castle that stood on the site in days of old.

Dubh Glasha

-- Inhabitants

47

Dubh-Ghlaise, the black brook or streamlet. J. O'D.

Dooglasha

-- J. O'D.

Rises in Doon Ph., runs S.W. through Abington Ph. for about 6 miles and falls into the River Mulkeir.

This river is about 20 feet wide, and very shallow, with a gravelly bottom. It has no fish in it.

The Factory House

-- Inhabitants

In the S.E. corner of Cappanahanagh Td. and at the E. end of the Lord's Road.

Built about the year 1740 by Lord Carbery, it has long since fallen into ruins, and scarcely any of the building remains. But the place where it stood still bears the name. It is on the road from Moroe to Newport, off which leads the Lord's Road, forming the Cross of the above name.

Hollywell

-- Inhabitants

48

Holy ?

Situated in the N.W. part of Ashroe Td., about 15 chains N. of Ashroe House and 20 W. of the road to Newport.

Is a spring well, about 3 feet in diameter and in a cultivated field with some fir trees about it.

Killeen

-- Inhabitants

Cillin, the little church or graveyard. J. O'D.

Situated in the W. part of the Td. of Cappanahanagh and about 6 chains E. from the N.E. corner of Clonloughna Td.

This is a small burial ground for children. It is about 30 feet in diameter and is in a green field.

End of Abington Parish, Book 1.

PARISH OF ABINGTON, BARONY OF OWNEYBEG. Book II.

Miscellaneous Features

Rosebrook

-- Inhabitants

1

Rosebrook

-- J. O'D.

Rises between the tds. of Toberagarriff and Farnane, runs S. forming the boundary between Ahacore and Maddyboy Tds., and falls into the R. Mulkeir.

This brook is about 3 feet wide and very shallow with a gravelly bottom. There is no fish in it.

Murroe, Village of

-- Inhabitants.

2

See Td.

-- J. O'D.

In the S.E. corner of Moroe Td. and N. W. of Wilton.

This village contains about 36 houses, chiefly low and of mud construction. Only 3 are two story high. Four are licensed publick houses, and 5 are petty groceries. There is a police barrack, and there are six fairs per annum. There is a Roman Catholic Chapel, which was built in 1820 at the cost of £850 collected off the parish, save £100 given by Lord Carberry. It is capable of containing about 1,200 persons.

Liss a Dhoone

-- Inhabitants

3

Lios a' Dúin, the fort of the doon. This is a union of two terms nearly synonymous, the same as Lios na Rátha. O'D.

Lissadoon

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the N. part of the td. of Farnane and about 6 chains N. of the road through the same td.

This fort, which is circular, is about 2 chains in diameter and 5 feet high, is of earth, and is overgrown with furze. It is on a rising ground, from which may be seen Lisgory.

Liss Guoire

-- Inhabitants

4

Lios Guaire, Guaire's or Gory's Fort. J. O'D.

Lisgory

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S.E. part of the td. of Cappanahanagh, about 12 chains W. of the road from Moroe to Newport, and

Liss Guoire (contd.)

and about 20 chains N. of the Factory House.

This fort is about $2\frac{1}{2}$ chains in diameter and 3 feet high, composed of earth, with a green flat surface. It is placed on an exalted hill, terminating almost at the top to the extent of the fort and commanding a fine view over a great part of the surrounding country. It has taken its name, it is said, from a man named Guaire, about whom a folk tale is current in the district.

Kyle Nanny

-- Inhabitants

5

Cill Nanna, Nanny's burial place. Evidently a modern name. J. O'D.

Kylenanny

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the td. of Cappanouk, near the middle of the W. boundary, and about 20 chains off the road from Cappamore to Limerick.

It is a small burial place, about 20 feet in diameter, in which children are interred. It is placed on the face of a green hill and level with the surface.

Tuama a Nhir Uoir

-- Inhabitants

6

Tuaim an Fhir Mhóir, the big man's grave. O'D.

Tuamanirvore

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S.W. corner of Meentolla townland and at the boundary of same and Glenstal Td.

This is a small heap of stones collected formerly by the passersby as a memorial raised over the remains, it is said, of a highwayman who was killed there.

Leun Bo Beaunish

-- Inhabitants

7

Léana Bó Mhághnuis, the wet meadow of Manus's cow. O'D.

Leanbomanus

-- J. O'D.

The Marsh of Manus's Cow - Inhabitants

Situated in the N. extremity of the td. of Moroe, 3 chains W. of the road from same village to Newport, and about 5 chains S. of Ahantanny.

This is a marshy spring of considerable depth, and about 1 chain in diameter, being circular.

Thobar Voirhe

-- Inhabitants

8

Grane's Well (Eng.) - Inhabitants

Tobar Mhoire, Moria's Well. O'D.

Tobermoria

-- J. O'D.

Thobar Voirhe (contd.)

Situated near the centre of the td. of Ballyvorheen, and about 6 chains S.W. of the road from Cappamore to Moroe.

Is a spring well about 2 feet in diameter.

Thobar a' Ghaddie

-- Inhabitants

9

Tobar a' Ghadaidhe, the well of the thief. O'D.

Toberagaddy

-- J. O'D.

Situated near the centre of the td. of Mongfune, 2 chains S. of the road from Cappamore to Moroe, and the same N. of the Schoolhouse.

A spring well, about 3 feet in diameter, in a cultivated field where, it is said, a thief was killed in the olden time. Whence the name.

Thobar Ainne

-- Inhabitants

10

Tobar Aine, Aine's or Hannah's well. J. O'D.

Toberania

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S. part of Mongfune Td. and S.E. of Toberagaddy.

A spring well, about 3 feet in diameter.

Thobar a Ghoal

-- Inhabitants

11

Tobar a' Ghoill, the well of the Englishman. J. O'D.

Toberaguile

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S.E. corner of Cappanahanagh Td., at the middle of the N. boundary of Moroe Wood Td., and 9 chains S. of the Lords Road.

A spring well of very good water, with a rivulet 3 feet wide running from it.

The Lord's Road

-- Inhabitants

12

Leads from the Factory House in a straight direction W. through the parish into that of Killeenagarriff.

This road was made by Lord Carbery about the year 1740, since which time it has been called as above.

Lilliput House

-- Inhabitants

13

-- Barony Map

Clonshavoy

-- J. O'D. See letter.

Situated in the centre of the td. of Clonshavoy.

This house was built sometime before 1790 by the Powels.

Lilliput House (contd.)

It has a decayed appearance, but is now being repaired to become the seat of the proprietor, Caliph Powell, Esq. It is three stories high.

Vockluice

-- Inhabitants

14

Vaneleuse Vauchluce Cottage -- Co. Map 1821 -- See letter.

This is just a fancy name. J. O'D.

Situated in the N.E. extremity of Toorlougher Td.

This house was built in 1838 by Matt Barrington, Esq., at the expense of £800. It is 2 stories high.

Spa Well

- Inhabitants

15

In the N.W. end of Toorlougher Td., and about 20 chains S. of Vauchluce Cottage.

This well is about 2 feet wide, proceeds from iron, and is esteemed good.

Munefung School

-- Inhabitants

16

Mongfune School

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the centre of Mongfune Td., and about 3 chains S. of Toberagaddy.

This school was commenced in 1833. The Master gets in sundries from the parents to the amount generally of £12 to £15 per annum. The daily attendance is from 80 to 30 scholars, of whom about two-thirds are boys, and all Roman Catholics.

Poul Eyone

-- Inhabitants

17

Poll Eidhin, the ivy hole. J. O'D.

Pouleyon

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the centre of Eyon Td.

This is a deep cavern in the centre of a high limestone hill. The hill commands a view of from 10 to 15 miles reach in every direction. The cavern is about 20 feet in diameter, and round it grows some ivy, etc. Its bottom has never been reached.

Eyone House

-- Inhabitants

Eyon House

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the centre of Eyon Td.

This house was built in 1838 for about £500. It is 2 story high, and is the seat of Mr. Richard Le Fanu. Laffan?

Abington Ph. (Bary. of Ownybeg) -- B. S.

18

Situated about 8 miles E. of the City of Limerick. It is bounded on the E. by Tuogh Ph.; on the W. by Killeen-agarriff and Abington (in the Bary. of Clanwilliam); on the S. by the parishes of Caherconlish and Tuogh; and on the N. by the County of Tipperary.

This parish is about 8 miles long and six miles broad. Nearly ½ of it is hilly, mountainous and heathy land; the rest is arable and for the most part level. It is badly convenienced with roads, the principal being the road from Limerick to Cappamore, &c., through its southern extremity, off which another road leads northwards to the Co. Tipperary.

Tuama a Nhir Uoir

-- Inhabitants

19

The Big Man's Grave (Eng.) -- Inhabitants

Tuaim an Fhir Mhoir, the grave of the big man. J. O'D.

Tuamanirvore -- J. O'D.

Situated in, and near the middle of, the N. boundary of Cappanahanagh Td., about 6 chains S. from same boundary, and about ½ a mile from Lisgory. This grave, which is placed on some rising ground in a cultivated field, is 21 feet long, 4 feet wide, and 3 feet high. On each side is a row of large upright stones, from 3 to 4 feet high, and sunk deep in the ground; and at each end stands a stone of similar magnitude. The grave is now uncovered, but would seem to have once been closed by the large stones which are now promiscuously lying on each side of it, besides a heap of smaller ones now overgrown with grass, moss, etc.

Tineyfield

-- Co. & Bary. Map

21

Situated in, and near the middle of, the N. boundary of Dromeliagh Td., west of the mill, and north of the union of three roads.

Tineyfield House is placed on the bank of the River Mulkeir. It is two stories high.

Abington House

-- See Letter

22

In Dromeliagh Td.

The residence of Michael A. P. John, Esq.

Mill Bank

-- See Letter

23

In Drumeliagh Td. The residence of Mrs. Sarah Keayes.

Farnane

-- See Letter

24

In Farnane Td. The residence of Thomas Costelloe, Esq.

Ballyvoreen

25

In Ballyvotheen Td. The residence of Wm. F. Holland, Esq.

PARISH OF ABINGTON - BARONY OF CLANWILLIAM - COUNTY

OF THE CITY OF LIMERICK

Book III

Abington Ph.

-- B. S.

1

For the name see Abington Td., page 1, Book I.

Situated about 5 miles E. of the City of Limerick. Bounded on the E. by the Ph. of Abington, in the Bary. of Owneybeg; N. by Cloonkeen, Killeenagarriff, and Derrygalvin Phs.; W. by the parishes of Kilmurry and Carrigparson; and S. by Caherconlish Ph.

This portion of Abington is about 3½ miles long and 1½ miles broad, with a level surface. Its principal road is that leading E. by W. through its southern part from Limerick to Tipperary. Another road lies parallel to same, passing through the centre of the townl

Townlands

Bohergar

-- B. S.

2

Bothar Gearr, the short road. J. O'D.

Bohergar

-- J. O'D.

Bohergur

-- Inhabitants

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824 -- Tithe Compn. Book 1826

-- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu -- Acts of Settmt. &c.

Bohergare

Situated in the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the Parish of Abington, Bary. of Owneybeg; on the S. by Caherconlish Ph.; on the W. by Sandy Lane Td.; and on the N. by the Td. of Ballyguy.

Contains 280 acres, which are arable, with some limestone. Soil - partly deep, partly light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and some wheat. The proprietor, James F. Wilkinson, Esq., has it in his own occupation.

Boher

-- B. S.

3

Bóthar, a road. J. O'D.

Boher

-- J. O'D.

-- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

Situated in the E. end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Bohergar Td.; W. by Cloghnadromin Td.; N. by Lismullane Td.; and S. by Sandylane Td.

Boher (contd.)

Contains 308 acres, which are arable without limestone. Soil - partly gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Clare has it let to 8 tenants with leases of 3 lives at £2 10s. to £1 15s. per acre, and under the above are six others at the same rent and tenure. Co. Cess generally 1s.4d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and Tithe istod. per acre. Prevailing Names - Bourke.

Ballyguy

-- B. S.

Baile an Ghaoidhil, town of the Irishman. J. O'D.

Ballyguy, or) Ballygeel

-- J. O'D.

Ballygy beg & more

-- Acts of Settmt. &c.

Situated in the N. end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Maddyboy Td.; W. Lismullane Td.; N. by the parish of Clonkeen; and S. by Boher Td.

Contains 199 acres, which are arable, with some limestone. Soil - light and wet, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor General Bourke has it let per his agent Daniel Barrington, Esq., to 3 tenants at will, and at £2 2s. pet acre, tithe included. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre paid half yearly. Bog very scarce.

Clooncunna North

-- B. S.

Cluain Connaidh, lawn or bog-island of the firewood. O'D.

Clooncunna N.

-- J. O'D.

Clooncunna & Keildromin

-- Inhabitants

Clooncanna

-- Tithe Compn. Book -- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

In the west end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Kishyquirk Td.; W. by Carrigparson Td.; N. by Derrygalvin Ph.; and S. by Clooncunna S.

Contains 220 acres of which about 30 are bog and rough ground. Soil - deep and boggy, producing potatoes, corn & flax. The proprietor Lord Clare has it let per his agent Thomas Davenport, Esq., to one tenant by a lease of 3 lives at £1 8s. per acre, and he again to 3 others by a tenure expiring in 1847 at £2 8s. per annum. Co. Cess generally 4s.6d. to 6s. per acre half yearly for about half the townland, and tithe 10d. per acre.

Cloghnadrummin

-- B. S.

6

Cloch na Dromainn, stone of the ridge. J. O'D.

Clogh/na/dromin

-- J. O'D.

Cloughnadromin

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

Cloghnadrummin (contd.)

In the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by the td. of Sandy Lane; on the S. and W. by Caherconlish Ph.; and on the N. by Kishyquirk Td.

Contains 554a which are arable, without limestone. Soil -partly light, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and some wheat. The proprietor Major Simon Purdon has it let to 3 tenants by leases of 3 lives and 31 years at £1 16s. per acre, and they again to 5 others at £2 3s. to £3 per acre, in farms of from 3 to 90 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half-yearly, and Tithe 1s. 10d. to 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce. Prevailing Names - Mulcahy.

Kishykirk

-- B. S.

u a u

Ceis Ui Chuirc, O'Quirk's kesh, or causey, or causeway of wickerwork. O'D.

Kishyquirk

-- J. O'D.

Kishiquirk

-- Barony Map

VISUIGUILK

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Inhabitants

Kishyquirke

-- Down Survey Maps

Kissiquircke -- Civil Survey 1654-1656

In the west end of the parish. Bounded on the E. and S. by Cloghnadromin Td.; on the W. by the td. of Clooncunna; and on the N. by the ph. of Derrygalvin.

contains 288 acres which are arable with limestone. Soil partly deep and producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat.
The proprietor Lord Clare has it let to 16 tenants by leases
of 3 lives at £3 to £1 per acre, and in farms of 2 to 23
acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half
yearly, and Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in
abundance. Prevailing Names - Collopys.

Lismullaan

-- B. S.

8

Lios Mothlain, Mothlan's or Mullan's Fort. J. O'D.

Lismullane

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. T. P. Le Panu

-- Barony Maps

Lissmollane

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Lismulhane)
Lismullane

-- Down Survey Maps

Lismullan & Lismolane

-- Acts of Settmt. 1666-1684

In the north end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Ballyguy Td.; On the S. and W. by Cloghnadromin; and on the N. by the parish of Clonkeen.

Lissmullaan (contd.)

Contains 267 acres which are arable with limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and some wheat. The proprietor Lord Clare has it let to 4 tenants at will & at £3 5s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Modlhabuee

-- B. S.

9

Maide Buidhe, the yellow stick.

Maddyboy

Maddybuoy

Madeboy Modilbuoy

Maddebuy & Maddeboy

Maydyboy

-- J. O'D.

- Tithe Compn. Book 1826

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

-- Down Survey Maps
-- Acts of Settmt. &c.

In the east end of the parish. Bounded on the E. and S. by the Ph. of Abington, Bary. of Owneybeg; on the W. by Ballyguy Td.; and on the N. by Clonkeen Ph.

Contains 84 acres, arable and without limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and some
wheat. The proprietor Benjamin Lucas, Esq., has it let at
will to 2 tenants at £1 6s. per acre. Co. Cess generally
1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and Tithe 1s.6d. per
do. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Sandy Lane

-- B. S.

10

Bóthar Sgéithe Ghainimh, road of the drifting sand. O'D.

Sandy Lane

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Rev. T. P. Le Fanu

-- Barony Map

In the south end of the parish. Bounded on the E. by Bohergar Td.; S. by the Ph. of Caherconlish; W. by Cloghnadromin Td.; and N. by Bohergar Td.

Contains 268 acres which are arable without limestone. Soil - light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat. The proprietor John Digby, Esq., has it let to 9 tenants by leases of 3 lives or 31 years in farms of 3 to 50 acres at £1 12s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and tithe 1s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce. Prevailing Names - Gibbons and Hickey.

Clooncanna South

-- B. S.

11

For name see Clooncanna North, page 5.

Situated in the west end of the parish. Bounded on the

Clooncanna South (contd.)

North by Clooncunna N.; E. by Kishyquirk Td.; and W. by Carrigparson Td.

This td. contains 29 acres which are arable & without limestone. The proprietor Lord Clare has it let per his agent Thomas Davenport, Esq. to 2 tenants by leases of 3 lives at £1 18s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s. per acre. Soil - partly light. producing potatoes, corn & flax.

Boher Chapel

-- Inhabitants

12

Séipéal a' Bhóthair, the chapel of (by) the road.

Boher Chapel

-- J. O'D.

Situated in Sandylane Td., at the middle of the E. boundary and N. of the road leading through it.

This chapel was built in 1839 at the expense of about £700 collected off the parish. It is capable of containing about 800 persons.

Closh Dhu

-- Inhabitants

13

Clais Dubh, black pit or furrow.

Clashduff

-- J. O'D.

Black Pit (Eng.)

-- Inhabitants

Situated near the centre of Cloghnadromin Td., and N. of the road from Limerick to Tipperary.

"Closhdhu" is about one chain in diameter and proportionally deep, in which, it is said, children had been interred, in the olden days.

Cnuckaun a funch

-- Inhabitants

14

Cnocán na Fuinnse, hillock of the ash. O'D.

Ash Hill (End.)

-- Inhabitants

Knockaunnafunch

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the S.E. corner of Bohergar Td., and attached to the S. side of the road thro' same townland.

This hillock is about 2 chains in diameter, being circular, with a flat top, and about 20 feet higher than the road. It has several hawthorn bushes growing on it, and it is of a sandy nature. Human bones have been found within a foot of the surface, the cause of which is supposed to be a battle fought here in the old times.

Thobar boroma

-- Inhabitants

15

Mobar Boróimhe, Boroo's well.

Thobar boroma (contd.)

Toberboroo

-- J. O'D.

Situated in Lismullane Td. and within 10 chains of the middle of the west boundary thereof.

Is a spring well, about 3 feet wide, in a field. It has a small rivulet running from it.

Kishikirk National Schools

-- Inhabitants

15

Kishyquirk N. S.

-- J. O'D.

See townland.

Situated in the N.E. corner of Kishyquirk Td., and S. of the road leading through same townland.

These schools, a male and a female, were built in 1824 by the Kildare Street Society at the expense of about £600, partly obtained from the Society, and partly from the Board of Education, under which they came in 1832. The Master of the Boys' School is paid £8 by the Board and £4 by Lord Clare, besides from 4s. to 8s. per annum from the scholars. The Mistress of the Girls' School receives £6 from the Board and £6 from Lord Clare per annum. The average number of scholars daily are 70 boys and 60 to 30 girls. In 1839 all the pupils were Roman Catholics.

End of the Parish of Abington